
 United Nations  E/2008/SR.43

  
 

Economic and Social Council  
Provisional 
 
15 September 2008 
 
Original: English 

 

 

Corrections to this record should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should be 
set forth in a memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They should be sent 
within one week of the date of this document to the Chief, Official Records Editing Section, 
room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza. 

08-43733 (E) 
*0843733* 

Substantive session of 2008 
Coordination segment 
General segment 
 

Provisional summary record of the 43rd meeting 
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Thursday, 24 July 2008, at 3 p.m. 
 

 President: Mr. Lima (Vice-President). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  (Cape Verde) 
 
 
 

Contents 
 

The role of the United Nations system in implementing the ministerial declaration of 
the high-level segment of the substantive session of 2007 of the Council (continued) 

Economic and social repercussions of the Israeli occupation on the living conditions 
of the Palestinian people in the occupied Palestinian territory, including Jerusalem, 
and the Arab population in the occupied Syrian Golan (continued) 



E/2008/SR.43  
 

08-43733 2 
 

In the absence of Mr. Mérorès (Haiti), Mr. Lima (Cape 
Verde), Vice-President, took the Chair. 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m.  
 
 

The role of the United Nations system in 
implementing the ministerial declaration of the high-
level segment of the substantive session of 2007 of the 
Council (continued) (E/2008/21; E/2008/L.22 and L.29) 
 

Draft resolution entitled “The role of the United 
Nations system in implementing the ministerial 
declaration on strengthening efforts to eradicate 
poverty and hunger, including through the global 
partnership for development, adopted at the high-level 
segment of the substantive session of 2007 of the 
Economic and Social Council” (E/2008/L.22) 
 

1. The President drew attention to draft resolution 
E/2008/L.22 entitled “The role of the United Nations 
system in implementing the ministerial declaration on 
strengthening efforts to eradicate poverty and hunger, 
including through the global partnership for 
development, adopted at the high-level segment of the 
substantive session of 2007 of the Economic and Social 
Council” and noted that it contained no programme 
budget implications.  

2. Ms. Pliner (Secretary of the Council) said that a 
comma should have been inserted after the word 
“development” in paragraph 9.  

3. Draft resolution E/2008/L.22, as orally corrected, 
was adopted.  

4. Mr. Delacroix (France), speaking on behalf of 
the European Union, said that the European Union 
attached great importance to the attainment of all the 
Millennium Development Goals; the fact that those 
Goals were interdependent required an integrated 
approach. The United Nations system must therefore 
adopt a multidimensional approach when tackling 
poverty and hunger. In that connection, the resolution 
should have mentioned, in addition to science and 
technology, the need for sustained economic growth, 
the importance of taking into account the three pillars 
of sustainable development, the promotion of full 
productive employment, the achievement of decent 
work for all, the need to develop social services, and 
the promotion of gender equality and empowerment of 
women.  

5. Furthermore, the European Union understood 
paragraph 6 of the resolution to refer to coordination 
among the funds, programmes and agencies of the 
United Nations in their development activities, within 

their mandates and on the basis of existing texts. 
Lastly, the implementation of the global partnership for 
development required first and foremost the 
engagement of all Member States, in partnership with 
civil society, non-governmental organizations and the 
private sector. The United Nations system’s role was 
simply to support the action of Member States. 
 

Draft  resolution entitled “Role of the Economic and 
Social Council in the integrated and coordinated 
implementation of the outcomes of and follow-up to 
major United Nations conferences and summits, in light 
of relevant General Assembly resolutions, including 
resolution 61/16” (E/2008/L.29) 
 

6. The President drew attention to draft resolution 
E/2008/L.29 entitled “Role of the Economic and Social 
Council in the integrated and coordinated 
implementation of the outcomes of and follow-up to 
major United Nations conferences and summits, in 
light of relevant General Assembly resolutions, 
including resolution 61/16” and noted that it contained 
no programme budget implications.  

7. Draft resolution E/2008/L.29 was adopted.  
 

Oral decision 

8. The President suggested that the Council take 
note of the report of the Secretary-General on the role 
of the United Nations system in implementing the 
Ministerial Declaration of the high-level segment of 
the 2007 substantive session of the Economic and 
Social Council (E/2008/21).  

9. It was so decided.  
  

Economic and social repercussions of the Israeli 
occupation on the living conditions of the Palestinian 
people in the occupied Palestinian territory, 
including Jerusalem, and the Arab population in the 
occupied Syrian Golan (continued) (E/2008/13; 
E/2008/L.26) 
 

Draft  resolution entitled “Economic and social 
repercussions of the Israeli occupation on the living 
conditions of the Palestinian people in the Occupied 
Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem, and 
the Arab population in the occupied Syrian Golan” 
(E/2008/L.26) 

10. Mr. Benfreha (Algeria), introducing draft 
resolution E/2008/L.26 entitled “Economic and social 
repercussions of the Israeli occupation on the living 
conditions of the Palestinian people in the Occupied 



 E/2008/SR.43
 

3 08-43733 
 

Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem, and the 
Arab population in the occupied Syrian Golan”, said 
that South Africa had joined the sponsors. The word 
“mother” should be inserted before the word 
“homeland” in paragraph 12 of the draft resolution.  

11. As noted in the report prepared by the Economic 
and Social Commission for Western Asia on the same 
subject (E/2008/13), the Israeli occupation of the 
Palestinian territory and Syrian Golan continued to 
intensify the economic and social hardship of the 
Palestinian and Syrian people. The report painted a 
bleak picture of high unemployment, rampant poverty 
and rising health-related problems among the 
Palestinian population, particularly in the Gaza Strip 
and confirmed that illegal Israeli settlements, the 
confiscation and destruction of Palestinian land and the 
unlawful construction of the wall in the occupied 
Palestinian territory, including East Jerusalem, 
continued to have negative repercussions on 
Palestinian people’s living conditions. Indeed, such 
illegal policies curtailed normal economic and social 
life, and fuelled and prolonged the conflict. The report 
also documented the continued negative impact of 
Israeli settlements in the occupied Syrian Golan on the 
Syrian people’s access to their natural resources and 
social services, and the threat posed by Israeli 
landmines to Syrian Arab villagers in the occupied 
Syrian Golan.  

12. The draft resolution was very similar to the 
resolution adopted the previous year. In addition, it 
expressed grave concern about the continuation of 
settlement activities and other related measures in the 
Occupied Palestinian Territory, as well as in the 
occupied Syrian Golan; stressed the importance of 
national unity among the Palestinian people, and 
emphasized the need for the respect and preservation of 
the territorial integrity and unity of the Occupied 
Palestinian Territory, including East Jerusalem; and 
called upon Israel to comply with the provisions of the 
Fourth Geneva Convention, and to facilitate the visits 
of Syrian citizens of the occupied Syrian Golan whose 
family members resided in their homeland, the Syrian 
Arab Republic, via the Qunaitra entrance.  

13. He hoped that the draft resolution would be 
adopted by consensus and that it might help alleviate 
the misery and untold suffering of the Palestinian 
civilian population living under Israel’s 41-year-old 
occupation.  

14. The President said that Indonesia, Malaysia and 
Mauritania had become sponsors of the draft resolution 
and that action would be taken thereon at a later stage.  

The meeting rose at 3.35 p.m. 
 


